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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The meeting for Public Works Committee for October the 3rd
is in session. At this time, Members, I'd like to get away from the agenda for a
brief moment if there is no objections.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, this morning we're so privileged to
have with us a Mayor of the Philippines from the city of San Nicolas, Mayor, and
he's also a doctor, Dr. Alfredo Valdez visiting us this morning. Along with Dr.
Valdez is also his wife, who is also a doctor, and I'd like to call on Dr. Valdez to
come up to the podium to say a few words.
MR. VALDEZ: Good morning. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for gIVlllg us this
opportunity. It is a great honor for me to be able to come and speak on this
August, Friday. Before I, may I introduce my company?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. VALDEZ: We have the Vice President of the Annak Ti San Nicolas of Maui, Mrs.
Tessie Layaugan over here. And then from the Philippines one our leaders in the
Women in Development, this is Lordelina Quidilla, here with me.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MR. VALDEZ: Okay. Briefly, now, San Nicolas is a very small municipality in Ilocos
Norte. Okay. It is, as a matter of fact, the second smallest municipality in Ilocos
Norte in terms of land area, but then we have the second biggest population
around Nicoli.
So, we look forward to, to being, to forging a sisterhood relationship within,
between the County of Maui and the municipality of San Nicolas as I have
mentioned to Mayor Arakawa last night. And I think maybe with our trade and,
of course, our people we can, we can forge a good relationship. And then, of
course, again, after the sisterhood of the Providence of Ilocos Norte and the State
of Hawaii, which happened in February this year, we'd like to have a closer
relationship with your County.
So, with that we say aloha to the County of Maui, to your very hospitable people,
and we'd like to thank you for giving us this opportunity. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mayor Valdez. Members, you have any questions
for Mayor Valdez before he leaves the podium? If not, thank you very much, and
thank you for visiting our Island. I understand you had a real good time at the
Maui County Fair, and then, you know, safe trip going back to the Philippines.
Thank you very much for stopping by. Mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Chair. Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, before the Mayor leaves I just wanted to share with,
with you and the public that the Mayor, by the way, not only is he a Ph.D., but
he's also a very talented singer as well. I had the privilege of meeting Mayor
Valdez and his wife at a get together Friday night.
So, I just would like to share that bit of information. So, we have a very well
rounded individual who leads the City of San Nicolas over in Ilocos Norte.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. VALDEZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mayor. Okay. Members, this morning I'd like to
introduce the Committee Members that are here this morning. We do have our
Vice-Chair Member Mike Molina; Members, Robert Carroll as well as Member
Mateo from Molokai, and Member Hokama from the Island of Lanai.
With us this morning is members of the Administration. We do have the Deputy
of Public Works Michael Miyamoto as well as their design engineer, Mr. Joe
Krueger. Representing the Corporation Counsel this morning is Ms. Cindy
Young. This morning our Council Staff are Scott Jensen as well as Yvette
Bantilan.
Members, the Chair will be having testimony for each agenda item as they come
up this morning. For agenda item, we do have three agenda items that are on the
schedule this morning, Public Works 1, Public Works 36, and Public Works 34.

PW-J

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS IN THE COUNTY OF MAUl
(CC No. 05-33)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we're going to take up the first agenda item, and this
is a result of County Communication No. 05-33, relating to the matter of roadway
improvements in the County of Maui. This morning we'll be provided with
updates of various State and County road projects throughout Maui County.
Joining us this morning, again, is our Deputy Mr. Miyamoto as well as the design
engineer Mr. Joe Krueger. And in the audience we do have the Department of
Transportation District Engineer Mr. Freddie Cajigal.
So, with that, Members, I'd like to call on public testimony for this agenda item,
Public Works Item No.1. Is there anyone out there that wants to provide public
testimony? If not, for this agenda item the Chair would like to close public
testimony if there's no objections.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. At this time, the Chair would like to
call on the Department to provide us some comments and also do their
presentation on the updates in regards to the road ... , roadway improve ... ,
improvements for Maui County. Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess for this Item PW-l, I guess we'll
have a summary of the roadway activities by the State DOT and by our County
engineer here with Mr. Krueger. If we could start with the slide, the slide show
presentation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chair will call a short recess to lower the
screens.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:13 a.m.
9:15 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Public Works Committee meeting is
reconvened. Mr. Krueger.
MR. KRUEGER: Good morning. Can you hear me?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
MR. KRUEGER: Okay. While the computer's warming up, the road improvements that
I'm going to cover are all the improvements Countywide including Federal aid
and regular County CIP projects. The areas I'm going to cover are West Maui,
South Maui, Central Maui, Paia and Upcountry, Lanai, Molokai, and Hana.
In West Maui, we have several road projects including some drainage projects.
The Lower Honoapiilani Road improvements is a Federal aid project. It's $78
million in construction. It runs from Hoohui Road to Napilihau Road, about a
mile and a half. I'll show a map later right after this slide.
We have the Keawe Street extension, which is about a half mile. It connects the
Lahaina bypass to the existing Keawe Street, which is across the cannery. It's
about a $2.5 million project. We have ongoing a Lahaina town drainage master
plan. We have also the Lahaina watershed flood control, and a small project, the
Shaw Street sidewalk.
The reo .. , district resurfacing is doing resurfacing on the Lower Honoapiilani
Road from Napilihau. On the top of the screen where the arrow is, is, is the
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Lower Honoapiilani Road project, which is about a mile and a half from Hoohui
to Napilihau Road. And at the bottom of the screen we have our Keawe Street
extension. This is the Lahaina bypass. The first phase of the bypass is going to
go from Lahainaluna Road to Keawe Street, and will connect Keawe Street to the
existing Keawe Street.
This is a blow-up of Keawe Street from the bypass to the existing road. This is
the Lahaina Cannery. Our Shaw Street sidewalk is right in here. We're not doing
the whole road, but we're doing a portion of it in here. This is Lahainaluna Road.
This is our Lahaina Watershed Flood Control. It goes from Lahainaluna Road to
Kauaula Stream to a second outlet between Puamana and the park. The Lahaina
Town water, the Lahaina Town Master Plan covers the area from Kahoma Stream
to Kauaula Stream between the Lahaina Watershed and the ocean.
On South Maui we have several projects. We have several phases of the
North-South collector road in design. We have several phases of the South Kihei
Road. The Kihei bikeway is in construction right now. We, also in design and
planning is the Waipuilani Bikeway. And in Maalaea we have sidewalks going
on Hauoli Street, which we have 500,000 from the '06 budget.
This is North Kihei. On the left side, my laser's going out. On the left side are
where the arrows distinguishes South Kihei Road are the, the phases that we are
working on. On the right side where the, where the arrows are designated a
section of the North-South Collector Road, this is one phase that we're working
on in design from Kanaolu to Waipuilani. The other phase is from Lipoa Street to
Ohana Street that we're also in design.
The Kihei Bikeway that's in construction is from Waipuilani to Lipoa Street.
This is a $2.2 million Kihei bike, bike path project. The, Ohana Street is over
here, so this is that, that rest of that North-South Collector Road. There is a leg of
the North-South Collector Road from Kealii Alanui to Keonekai that is being built
privately with, in conjunction of developing in this area here. That'll be with
private funds.
In Central Maui we have several projects. We have Hansen Road. That is being,
being designed in-house. Waiko Road, oh, the Hansen Road is, the, the portion
where, we're realigning right near the Post Office where that curve is to straighten
out the road.
Waiko Road we, we're wanting to improve it from Honoapiilani to Kuihelani.
The Lower Main-Waiale Road project goes from Papohaku Park to Mahalani
extension. Market Street we're improving it from Mokuhau Road to Wells Street.
This is a $5 million project.
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And Imi Kala is, part of it is being developed by Sterling Kim from Kahekili
Highway to the existing Imi Kala Street. This is Central Maui. Here's Imi Kala
right here. From Kahekili Highway across the street to the existing road. This is
Mill Street. There's another section of Imi Kala in here that we're looking at.
Market Street goes from Mokuhau to Wells Street.
These maps are from the, these maps are from the Long Range State
Transportation Improvement. Hansen Road it comes right where Mokule1e meets
Puunene Avenue, and right near, right near the post office there's a, a mean curve
that we're wanting to straighten out. Lower Main Street has already been
improved from Waiehu Beach Road to Papohaku Park. We have four lanes in
there.
We want to improve Lower Main from that point all the way to the Mahalani
where we already improved, extended Mahalani to Waiale Road. And then
Waiko is in, Waiko Road is in Waikapu, and we're wanting to improve it from
Honoapiilani to Kuihelani.
Upcountry we have several projects. We have the Makawao-Makani Road
improvement. We will be seeking Federal funds on these, on this project. This
project goes from Eddie Tam Gym on Makawao Avenue to Makani Road and
down Makani Road to Kalama School. What we're wanting to do is widen the
road and install sidewalks.
Makawao Avenue we're resurfacing a portion of it now. What we're wanting to
improve is the intersection with the bypass so as the, so as to prevent the cars
from backing up when people are making right turns and left turns, yeah. We
have a conflict and too many cars are backing up. We're doing portions of
Omaopio Road and Piiholo Road. We'll be doing some widening and mostly
resurfacing.
We have two bikeway projects in the area, the Baldwin Park bikeway, which runs
from Baldwin Park to Paia town, and we have a Baldwin Avenue bikeway, which
runs from Paia to Makawao. These are, these are both Federal aid projects.
On Lanai we have the Fraser Avenue resurfacing besides the, the Lanai district
resurfacing. This is an in-house design.
On Molokai besides the district resurfacing we have the Kaunakakai drainage
improvements. This is Kaunakakai town and System A has already been
completed. System B runs right down the middle of town towards the harbor and
there's an outlet right at the side, right, but this is the system. It runs right down
the middle of town going down to the harbor. Part of this is already completed,
part of it is in construction, and part of it is being redesigned.
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The next phase is System C, which picks up right behind town and goes also
towards the ocean in this piece in here. System D is this section in here that goes
along Kam, Kam V and goes, goes to the ocean in an existing outlet here. And
System E is to upgrade these two drainage ways that goes through Kapaakea.
In Hana we have, besides the District resurfacing, six bridges Kaholopo'o Bridge
we had bid out once, but the bids were too high, and so we did some revisions,
and we're rebidding the project out. Papahawahawa, we hope to bid out within a
couple, three months. We had to revise the, the plans to provide a detour bridge
in lieu of the detour road that we had. Paihi and Waiohonu, should go about
March or April next year. And then the following year we have Koukouai and
Kahawaiokapia Bridge.
The is, this is the east end of Hana. This is Hana Bay. These are kind of hard to
read. Well, you can read it better on the handouts. This, these bridges are within
the historic district for bridges on the Hana Highway, and we're going to be
building one lane bridges and/or rehabilitating what, what bridges that we can.
Koukouai is a, an arched spandrel that we're, we're planning, we're trying to see
if we can preserve it, and just rehabilitate it instead of replacing it. Koukouai and
Papahawahawa we will have to replace. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joe. At this time, we're going to have Mr. Cajigal
provide us some information on the Department of Transportation State
Roadways.
MR. CAJIGAL: Good morning.
(Note: long pause)
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
MR. CAJIGAL: I'm going to start with the highly visible projects, which is the, the
Mokulele Highway widening. Currently we're doing the, what we call a Phase
1B, which is between the South Mehamemaha Loop where it, up to the Fish and
Wildlife driveway right before Monsanto Farms. That's, that project is ongoing,
and it, they should be finish with the project sometime in, during the summer,
July 2006.
The, the section that we skipped last year is the, what we call the Phase 1C, which
is just in front of the old airport by the new National Guard building. That runs
from the Humane Society to the Kolaloa Bridge. We anticipate opening the, the
bids in November. Construction to start in April of next year, and it takes about a
year to finish it up to the tune of $18 million.
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Phase lA, will take us from the Fish and Wildlife driveway to where it ties in at
Uwapo Road on Piilani Highway. That also will be going out to bid the ending
part of this year, and we hope to start the project in May of next year with
completion of another year. So, hope ... , most of these projects will be going out
at about the same time. The three phases will be built concurrently. The first two
phases are, have been completed. That's the one from Kuihelani Highway to the
Maui Humane Society.
The next project I'm going to talk about is the Haleakala Highway widening,
which is a continuation of the recently completed project from the North
Firebreak Road to Pukalani bypass. That also will be put out to bid in December
of this year. It will take a little over two years to finish it up.
Currently we're doing a, what we call a Haleakala Crater Road resurfacing, and
most of that, that project is just a typical resurfacing project. We'll be upgrading
all the entry ways to the bridges, and upgrading the signs and pavement markings.
We've just completed a first phase of rock fall mitigation project out in Hana, and
that one we installed some, some nettings and scaled, scaled the slopes. And right
now we're designing the second phase for that project, which is right above
Wailua to capture some ofthese rocks. And so, basically what they're looking at,
we're looking at installation of some fencing and some roadside grading and slope
clearing. We hope to bid out that project sometime in July of next year.
Right now we, we're doing this rock fall miti ... , actually what we're calling it is
the repairs and maintenance, but what we're actually doing is installing some drill
shaft to prevent the slope, I mean, the, the road from eroding further, and that's
right at Milepost 11, over $2.1 million. We should be finished with the project in
a couple of months.
Out in Molokai we have Kam V highway replacement of Kawaikapu Bridge.
That project is ongoing. At the same time, right in the same vicinity, right in the
vicinity of that bridge we're also doing some resurfacing and reconstruction of
pavement and other safety improvements.
Lahaina bypass, this is the design built project that was put out to bid last year, a
design built project last year. As we, most of you know, the, the lowest bidder
withdrew his bid and was under protest. My understanding is that a, we, the
Department received the recommendation or the decision from the, from the
hearing's officer, but I really don't know the details at this point.
The other projects that's under design is the widening of Honoapiilani Highway
from Lahainaluna Road to Aholo. That's, the project is under, although the
project is under design we just don't have the, the construction project, I mean
construction funds at this point. It's not in our, the three year STIP, but we can, if
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we can have the funds in a few years, or in a couple of years or so, we can always
amend the STIP to include it in.
Several other resurfacing projects in Hana from Milepost 30 to Milepost 34,
Honoapiilani Highway from Olowalu to, to the Puamana, and sections of Piilani
Highway from, it shouldn't be Haleakala Highway, from Kilohana to Wailea Iki.
I also have in the handout the, a copy of the, of the STIP projects for fiscal years
'06 to fiscal year '08. In that handout, it lists, we do list significant projects as
well as Federal aid projects. I mean originally significant State funded projects as
well as Federal aid projects. We, what we have in there is Hana Highway and
Kaahumanu Avenue beautification, guardrail and shoulder improvement projects
out in Lahaina from Honokahau to Papanahoa Bridge. We have replacement of
Honolua Bridge.
Kahului Airport access road, we are gearing up for the design of that project right
now, and trying to revise the, the EIS. As we all know, it was tied in with the
improvements of the airport ones. So, what we're trying to do is we're going to
try to revise the EIS to, to make that project, to make it a stand alone project. And
the designs scheduled for this year and construction, construction fund is allocated
for next year.
This Kahului Beach Road lighting improvement projects I believe it runs at, we're
looking at Kanaloa and all the, the harbor area ... (End a/Tape, Side lA.) . ..
Lahaina bypass, which is from Lahainaluna Road to, to Launiupoko is, is also
scheduled for design in fiscal year '07, which is next year. And MSIO, which is
on the second page, Puunene Avenue widening from Wakea to Kuihelani
Highway, design has been scheduled for fiscal year '07.
Waiehu Beach Road rehabilitation of lao Stream Bridge, we're in the process of
acquiring the necessary right-of-way right now. And couple more projects in
Molokai, which is guardrail and shoulder improvement projects, Kawela Stream
Bridge replacement and Makakupaia Stream Bridge replacement.
The Kihei-Upcountry Highway is, I believe the, the contract with the, with the
design consultant is, the execution of the contract is in progress. I believe they've
completed the negotiation. And we're looking at completing the design in the
early part of 2008 and construction to follow thereafter. If we get the construction
funds we should be able to finish up the project in, in 2013.
Paia bypass I reported in February of this year that we were negotiating, and
we're still negotiating is my understanding from our planning branch, but we are
looking at starting the design, I mean the planning early next year with a
completion, with a completion date of, completion, target completion year of
2010. Land and design we're looking at completion of2012, with construction to
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follow, and the project should be completed by 2014, construction completed by
2014.
Honoapiilani Highway realignment and widening, this is the one from Maalaea to,
to Puamana. We're looking at, right now it's been estimated at $135 million. I
think it's, we're looking at $135 to $150 million. My, negotiation with the
consultant is still in progress. The schedule wise this, this is what we're looking
for, planning to be done in 2010, land and design to be completed in 2013, and
construction to follow thereafter. Of course, a lot of this is subject to availability
of funds and, yeah. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Fred. At this time, the Chair would like to call a
short recess.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:41 a.m.
9:45 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Public Works Committee meeting is
back in session. Members, are there any questions that you may have regarding
the presentation? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. My question will be for the
Public Works Department for the Makawao project, or Makawao A venue, I
should say.
First of all, I guess I'll direct my question or comments to both Mr. Krueger and
Mr. Miyamoto. I want to first thank you for following up on the Council's
recommendation to pave this very important road that links several communities
to Upcountry, Maui. I've had many calls from people who have expressed their
appreciation to both the Council and the Department for the work that is going on
right now. And let me tell you even though the work has just started a lot of
people are saying it's already an improvement. Just to give you an idea of how
bad that road was.
I wanted to ask you, with regards to the presentation it was mentioned that you, I
guess both the County and the State are looking at improving the intersection near
the Pukalani bypass, because we do have a lot of back-up in the morning, which is
caused, I guess, I can, from my own observations you have traffic oncoming from
Pukalani and people who want to make that left off of Makawao A venue to go up
to King K or to Kamehameha School. That's what's causing that back-up, and I
guess you have people who are coming from Makawao who want to get in that
right lane to make that turn down to Kahului. That's what, I guess, has been one
of the major causes for that back-up.
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At this point, do you have any, can you update us with the status of where we're
at right now? Do you have any preliminary cost analysis? I would assume this is
a joint State-County project, and I guess what it would cost, you know, what
we're looking at in terms of costs for this particular project?
MR. KRUEGER: Our traffic section is, understands the situation, and they have, they
will, will meet with the Department of Transportation to figure out how they can
lengthen the left tum storage lane and the right tum storage lane, so that we don't
have this cueing, but from what I know now is that they're still in the planning
stage.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, at this point, no timetable yet?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. And I guess maybe later on, Mr. Chairman,
when Mr. Cajigal comes up we can get comments from him as well. And one last
comment, I want to thank you for bearing with me. I've been somewhat of a pest
to the Department since we put this proviso in to make Makawao Avenue a high
priority in the Upcountry area. So, myself and my office we've been checking
regularly, and we're glad the tree is finally bearing some fruit with regards to the
resurfacing of this very critical road in Makawao. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more questions
for the Department? Member Anderson. Oh, good morning, Member Anderson,
let me introduce you to the people that are out there. This morning joining us,
although she's not a member of the committee is Member Anderson from Kihei.
Go ahead, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks very much, Joe. We're going to have an
opportunity to question the Department and then the State later; right?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I'm just wondering if, Mr. Krueger, if you
could go to, I guess it's figure 5 after the introduction page for South Maui in
your PowerPoint. You've got all those segments with arrows on the makai side. I
don't believe that you explained what that is. Could you, could you reiterate that
if you did?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Krueger.
MR. KRUEGER: Sure. The, on the left side ofthe-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yes.

PW10103105

Page 12

MR. KRUEGER: --diagram the, the first segment is a phase of the South Kihei Road that
is in the design planning stage. The second segment is the limits of the
Waipuilani Bike Path, which goes from Kulanihakoi to Waipuilani on the beach
reserve lot. And that overlaps that third phase of which is a, a phase of the South
Kihei Road that is in design and planning right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, would that be contiguous, whatever you're
doing, to improve South Kihei Road?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're doing it in two phases.
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and at what, I mean at what, what point are
you in the design?
MR. KRUEGER: The section of South Kihei Road from Kulanihakoi to Lipoa Street
was already designed, and we had the SMA permit, but we're wanting to relook at
the street typical section to make it more oriented to what the community wants in
relation to bulb outs, and medians, and crosswalks. So, we're reevaluating the
design of that phase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's the lower phase.
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, that's from ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's the one that you've already gotten a
permit for?
MR. KRUEGER: Yeah, we have the SMA permit for that, but we're, we're revising the
design again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And did you already, of course, you must have
done an environmental assessment.
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, are you going to do a supplemental
assessment or a brand new one?
MR. KRUEGER: It depends on, on, on the extent of the, the revision. If, if the extent is,
is more than what we think we were going to do then we will do a supplemental
environmental assessment or an amendment to the environmental assessment.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, you've interfaced with the community?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And who, who in the community?
MR. KRUEGER: The Kihei Community Association.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and then the, the other portion of the South
Kihei Road design, the northern portion-MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --you're working with KCA now on that?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that you won't have to do a supplemental?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And when do you intend to do an EA for that?
MR. KRUEGER: We're, we're wanting to do, finish the, the other phase first-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. KRUEGER: --to make sure, then, and then we'll, we'll complete this phase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So, briefly can you just tell me or tell us
what the main intention is for the improvements of South Kihei Road?
MR. KRUEGER: The ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you widening it all the way? What, what are
the ...
MR. KRUEGER: Portions of it will, will need to be four lanes. That portion in front of
Azeka's, it's already four lanes now, but that is part of this phase. And then we're
wanting to go back to two lanes with, with medians. If not painted medians
maybe raised medians with crosswalks going through the medians. And on the
side of the road, little bulb outs to, to, as a traffic calming device as recommended
by KCA.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Bulb outs meaning?
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MR. KRUEGER: You know, it will be like a four by five curb attached to the exist ... , to
the new curb from the side of the road that sticks out. It's kind of hard to
describe. It's like a, yeah, it pinches, it looks like it will pinch this, the roadway,
but it, it'll be in a, like a parking lane. It'll be along the parking area. You know,
on the side of the road where you park within that parking area there'll be a little
planter about four by five feet wide.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and that will take parking space, you mean?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, well, it's, it's it'll be intermit. .. , intermittently spaced out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is this to keep people from passing on the left? I
mean on the right?
MR. KRUEGER: No, it's, it's just a, it's mainly a traffic calming device and a
beautification, but people rarely pass on the right on the, on the, on this type of
road, because there will be, have parking along the side of the road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
calming device?

Yeah, so I don't understand how it's a traffic

MR. KRUEGER: Well, if nobody's there it'll stick out like a sore thumb, and then
people will tend to slow down if they're speeding when they see an object on the
side of the road that close to the travel lane.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, are you considering areas for our public bus to,
to stop and pick up people? As you're designing this road are you providing for. .

MR. KRUEGER: We haven't put in a, we haven't put in any bus stops yet, but I know
there are some already designated. And it's, it's, there's some bus signs there
now, but that should be one of our design considerations is bus stops.
COUNCIL MEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, it sure should. And so, are you, you're, I'm
assummg that you're working in conjunction with the public transportation
people?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, and the school, school bus too.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: School buses stop on South Kihei Road?
MR. KRUEGER: I'm not sure. That's why we'll have to check with that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and, you know, I know there's been some
controversy over the bikeway greenway in, in conjunction with the north-south
collector road, and, and in fact many people in the community wanted, wanted a

PW10103105

Page 15

certain portion of, of that road to be, to have the bikeway greenway makai side of
the North-South Collector Road, and you folks had already designed it mauka.
So, I'm trying to find a way that we can avoid this kind of conflict in the rest of
the design. It's my understanding that the Department's position is that it needs
to, and, and the area, you know the area that I'm talking about where Kealii
subdivision is building?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and confirm this for me if I'm correct. It's
my understanding that the Department's position was it needs to be on the mauka
side to make it contiguous, or I guess safer so that it's on the same side of the road
as the school and the park, and the future park. Is that, is that correct?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. It also will be on the same side as the other phase that goes
from Lipoa Street to Ohana Street. So what we'll have is everything north of
Lipoa Street. The bike path will be on the makai side. And south of Lipoa Street
the bike path will be on the mauka side, because that's where all the schools and
parks are.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then that, that's the final design.
you're going to stick with that.

I mean

MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, everything south, excuse me, of Lipoa is going
to be makai?
MR. KRUEGER: Mauka.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: South is mauka?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And north is-MR. KRUEGER: Makai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --makai. Okay. Then just one other question, Mr.
Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This report of the South Maui Parks and Open
Space Master Plan, the County, this is an implementing action of our Community
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Plan, and the County paid for this report, wow, it was finalized in October '03.
And I, I know that one of the Council Committees, and I'm, I'm assuming it was
Parks, maybe it was Public Works, I don't know, had a brief presentation of this.
And I'm wondering how much of this you're following? I mean do you, are you
using this as, as a basis for your design decisions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Krueger.
MR. KRUEGER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: My goodness why not?
MR. KRUEGER: I haven't even read that. What are you referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is a Parks and Open Space Master Plan for South
Maui, and as I said this is an implementing requirement in our Community Plan
that this plan be done. And in this plan it, it calls out for the greenway bikeway to
be makai, the whole length of the North-South Collector Road.
And so, I think this is one of the reasons there was a strong controversy with the
community, the KCA and various people involved in the, in the bikeway, because
it was their, I guess, assumption that this plan would be followed. So, your
Department is, has not even read this plan?
MR. KRUEGER: I haven't. I don't know ifmy Department did or not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, could we write a letter and ask the
Department if it, if it's their intention to use this plan? And if not, and even, I
mean I, I think that, you know, when we spend money to develop plans that our
Community Plan calls for and the County pays for it, the County should follow it.
Or, if they don't want to follow it we should open it up for discussion so that there
isn't a waste of taxpayer dollars here, and that we have some foresight in our
planning.
This plan was done in conjunction with representatives of the community who
were involved in the greenway and have been for many, many years. And I
would like to see this report, I don't know if it would be appropriate for your
committee, Mr. Chairman, or for the Parks Committee, but in the past I know the
Council has adopted various plans such as this to be followed as County policy,
and it doesn't do us any good to spend money to have a professional consultant
firm spend months and thousands of dollars developing a plan only to have it sit
on a shelf, and to be brought down in argument when things aren't done
according to the plan.
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So, maybe we could send a letter to the Department, because Public Works, I
mean they're, they're the construction entity of the Coun ... , of the County, and
they have a lot to do with the development of our parks and open space.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll follow-up with a letter, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I do have a question though in regards to the design of the
North-South Collector Road. If there were any correlations in regards to what
Member Anderson just brought out regarding the Parks and Open Space Plan, if
there was, you know, a meeting of the minds as far as matching those plans so
that, you know, we do have one plan that we can follow? I, I don't know if the
North-South Collector Road design that was done by another consultant included
those informations that you have for the Parks and Open Space. If you have any
comments in regards to that, Department?
MR. KRUEGER: Actually, we're, we're in the design phase, design and planning phase.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, do you look at the study that was done for the Parks and
Open Space.
MR. KRUEGER: That'll be, that will be part of the planning process. We're still in the
early consultation for the environmental assessment before we do, we haven't
done the draft EA yet. We're doing the early consultation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For what specifically is that, excuse me?
MR. KRUEGER: For the North-South Collector Road we're in the design planning
stage. So, we're in the early consultation stage of the environmental assessment.
This is prior to doing the draft environmental assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
section?

And for what phase is that, excuse me? What

MR. KRUEGER: For the section from Lipoa to Auhana and the section from Kaonoulu
to Waipuilani, two separate phases.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Those are the two contiguous phases in the middle
ofthe-MR. KRUEGER: On that--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --on your diagram.
MR. KRUEGER: --on figure 5, on the right-hand side, it's the top one on the right hand
side-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KRUEGER: --and the bottom one on the right-hand side. That middle one is the
Kihei Bikeway Project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I see. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
Department? Member Anderson.

Members, any more questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I have one follow-up question. Mr.
Krueger, in your outline for West Maui you stated that, that you're working on the
Lahaina Town Master Drainage Plan.
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But I don't see anything for South Maui, and I'm
sure you've heard complaints from the Planning Commission that the South Maui
Master Drainage Plan needs to be upgraded. The design needs to be finalized, I
guess, and upgraded, and that we're going to continue to have flooding until the
culverts are upgraded on the makai side of Piilani Highway. So, can you give me
some idea on what the intention of the Department is in that project?
MR. KRUEGER: Sure. We have a contract for a Kihei Drainage Master Plan, and we
have a consultant ready to start. What we're waiting for is a contour map that the
Planning Department has contracted out to be completed for Kihei, which will tie
into my project, because I'll use the contour map for our design, our Drainage
Master Plan for, for Kihei.
So, we already have a contract, and that's what we're doing right now, is we're
waiting for the contour maps to be completed by the Planning Department's
consultant.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
doing that?

And the Planning Department has a consultant

MR. KRUEGER: You're correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
timeframe?

And did, did they give you any kind of a
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MR. KRUEGER: They did. It, it was, it was supposed to have been completed June '05.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Krueger. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson, Department. As a matter of
fact, the Public Works Committee would like to take up, on a separate agenda, the
drainage plan for Maui County and that way, you know, we address all the issues
that we have for the different districts. Thank you, again. Members, any more
questions for the Department? Thank you. At this time, any questions for the
Department of Transportation, State of Hawaii? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. My question is
for Mr. Cajigal. Just a follow-up question on what I asked the Department with
regards to the improvement of the, or the proposed improvement of the
intersection from Makawao Avenue and the new Pukalani bypass.
Mr. Cajigal, has there been consideration for maybe adjusting the light or putting
a left tum arrow on the light, because part of, I guess, the reason for that back-up
is you have traffic from Makawao trying to make that left tum to go up to King
Kekaulike High School and Kamehameha, and whereas the people in that left tum
lane they have to yield to traffic coming from Pukalani coming into Makawao? I
think part of that is school traffic, parents dropping off their kids over at Kalama
School, or maybe even Makawao SchooL Do you have any comment as to what's
been going on as far as the preliminary discussions with regards to this project?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah, excuse me. As you know, that left tum is so short, yeah, that
when you have this back-up in the morning it only can store two vehicles, three at
the most, and although there's a lot of motorists who want to decide to tum left
they cannot do anything, because that, that section, that left tum lane is so short.
So, we've been in discussion with the, the County of Maui, the Traffic, Traffic
Division to, as part of this effort that they're doing for Makawao, I don't know,
Avenue improvements or what, I don't know which project they, they have, is to
extend that tum lane, and at the same time do something with the right tum lane
to, to town. Extend that one so that we could push out a lot of this cars waiting to
make the tum.
And that has been the, the last communication I've had with the, the Traffic
Division. And I know that there is some things going on between my Traffic
Division and their Traffic Division, because they're looking at doing something
with the utility pole on the comer. Maybe they don't have to move it, it's just a
matter of maybe just putting some of those portable jersey barriers, like, to, to
retain the slope so that the pole won't come down, but that certainly has been
discussed.
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In addition to that, we could, and when, we could always adjust the timing to, to
accommodate whatever improvements that's, that's being done. In other words, if
we need to increase just the timing, so that the community proposed improvement
we can do it.
I'd also like to, to mention that there's also a project that we are about to, in fact,
we had the bid opening already, which is the signalization of Makani. And that
we feel that it's going to help out with the, with the, with the traffic in the, in the
area too, because then you would, you would split a lot of the traffic coming from
Pukalani to go to Kalama, because there's a lot of traffic that comes on Makawao
Avenue right now. That, that is the one that is holding up the, the, the left turns
out of Pukalani bound on Makawao Avenue.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Dh-huh. Has there been any consideration also, I, I've been
hearing from parents of the students who go to King Kekaulike School. Some of
these kids, I've noticed in the morning and afternoons, they walk along the side of
Haleakala Highway, and we've had some parents commenting about the
possibility of the State ... (End of Tape, Side 1B). .. working with the County to
put in some sidewalks. Has that issue come up as well?
MR. CAJIGAL: Personally I have not received any requests, but we've, a Legislator
approached me the other day, I guess it's the same concern that you, you're
bringing up right now. And we are looking into, I guess, programming a project.
It's not so much about the, the bypass itself, because we do have a wide shoulder
it's more the area between the Old Haleakala Road and King Kekaulike High
School that, that, that short area, because although we have a walkway it's not a
raised sidewalk that you see in the County system.
We do have just the shoulders divided by a, a curbing in between. And it's not,
it's just a lot of problem with that, with that system, because it is hard to maintain,
because there's always that curbing between the, the travel lane and the, and the
walkway.
So, yes, the, the sidewalk will improve the pedestrian circulation in the area.
We're also working on, working with some developers in, in the area to, to, to
install some sidewalks from a portion of the Haleakala, the Old Haleakala Road,
that frontage and it wraps around Kula Highway up to the King Kekaulike access.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Schools as well?

Has there been any involvement from, say, Kamehameha

MR. CAJIGAL: No, I have not heard anything.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

PW10103105

Page 21

MR. CAJIGAL: But it would, it would be nice if we could continue it all the way down
there.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Cajigal, good morning.
MR. CAJIGAL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Are you, your, your last references during your
presentation focused on the Paia bypass and the Lahaina bypass. And the Paia
bypass if you take a look at the projections that you've shared with us shows a
completion date of2014. You know, that, that's, like, eight yeas away and every
ensuing year the traffic continues to compound even greater on, on this particular
highway.
I don't, I don't even know if the State has a process available to expedite these
projects sooner, and if not, what is the State doing to help alleviate some of the
existing congestion areas? You know, are there plans for an interim type of
process to deal with the continued traffic flow problems before reaching the year
2014 when a final resolve to this traffic congestion becomes remedy?
MR. CAJIGAL: The only one that we have right now is, is the Paia mini bypass. Other
than that, see the 2014 was projected based on current trends in, like, say how
long it takes for us to plan a, a highway. I just, I was just told that national
average is about, I don't know, five years or something like that just to get the
planning going, or to get a, from, from the start of the planning to, I guess, when
you get your record of decision, but we hope to shorten that.
If we could, if we could shorten it by doing some other techniques like this and
build, because we certainly can, can cut out a lot of the, of the times between
design and construction, because the contractor could be designing and building at
the same time. But to answer your question, Councilmember Mateo, only the,
right now only the Paia mini bypass is what we have in the books.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So what takes the longest to do? Is it the land and
design that takes the longest to complete?
MR. CAJIGAL: It's, it's planning, because there's a lot of issues that, that would come
out during the planning process. Granted we could, if everything else is, if, if it's
not contested and nothing, everything else is okay, if the whole community wants
this project and that no, no other issues will come out we can probably do it in
couple of years or so.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, so if it does take about five years to actually
do plan and design?
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, that's what I'm saying the five years. It's just a national average
that we, we're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, that's, yeah, that's national average away from
here, because we're looking at the need for decades already, yeah.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And it just. ..
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, that, when I say five years I'm talking from the time we start
planning, the actual planning. We have not even gotten to that point yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well, I, I think that's kind of, like, why the
questions, you know-MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --because we waited for so long to deal with, with a
most congested part of our, our community that, that we just looking at being able
to have the State look at expediting sooner than, than waiting for Paia eight more
years and for Lahaina ten more years. It's just, I don't know if that's acceptable
in, in terms of the seriousness and the need of, of these two general areas.
So, unless, unless the State has options in providing additional relief in us waiting
these eight or ten years, respectively, you know, I just, I just don't know how, you
know, the wait is going to help this particular community.
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, I really don't know how to answer that question, because a lot of,
there's a lot of things that, a lot of factors that's involved with it. And I can
understand your, your, your concern, because I, too, would like to expedite this
whole process myself, but based on the current information that we have right
now that's it. We could only project up to, to that date. And, of course, there's a
lot of factors like funding, and everything else is going to have to corne in, corne
in play too. That's the best I could tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Cajigal. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Excuse me, I'm, I'm kind of knocked
for a loop, Mr. Cajigal. You, you said that there's no, no design or no plan yet.
I've seen at least three plans for this roadway that have been produced in the past.
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So, I'm very confused that you say there's no plan yet. And you also said based
on the information that we have. What is that information?
MR. CAJIGAL:
Well, let me, I don't know which plan you're referring to,
Councilmember Anderson, because I, I don't think I've seen any plan that, you
know, you're referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well ...
MR. CAJIGAL: When I said information I'm referring to the process of, of route
selection for our Federal Aid Highways. There's a process that we got to go
through that includes looking at five to ten route evaluations and short listing it to
three, or, or what have you, whatever is decided at that time.
And then an EIS will be prepared for, for those three, three routes if that's the
route that we're going to take. The, and those route that you mentioned will
probably, in all likelihood, be included in those other routes that will be, will be
taken. But that's how the route selection process that we, we got to do for
Federal, for Federal Aided Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
selections.

Well, I've seen a map with three different

MR. CAJIGAL: I. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mauka, intermediate and makai.
MR. CAJIGAL: Whose plan is that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I don't know, but it's an official map, and I
know that the Mayor's used it and discussed it with community members and
A&B who owns a good portion of the land. So ...
MR. CAJIGAL: So, those, those I would, like I said earlier when we go to, to, to make
the initial routes, we make the initial selection of the routes, I'm sure that they
will be all considered as part of the other routes that we, we, we, we're going to
come up with, and then from there we're going to start evaluating all those routes,
and we'll come up with, with the preferred route.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, my concern is the same as Member Mateo's
in that why is this taking so long to get a design, you know, at least three choices
that the community can then have a...
MR. CAJIGAL: See, see that, I guess that process, I don't know which route, how did
that route come about, but it has gone certainly through a process that has not
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I'm sure that's

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, when would you initiate the Federal process?
MR. CAJIGAL: As soon as we get this consultant on board that's the first thing that they
would do. They would go out to the community and look at, I guess, those three
routes plus other routes that they would come up with, and those are the routes
that they're going to have to study.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, when do you anticipate hiring a consultant
for this?
MR. CAJIGAL: The, I, I think in, in my presentation I said we're going to, to start the
planning in the early part of next year. We do have, we've been, we've been
negotiating for over a year now, I guess, for this year, because there's a lot of
issues that, that keeps on coming up between us and the Federal Highways and,
and, and all the other Departments.
So, we, my understanding is that we are in the process of, of, of the negotiation
and then they're going to start the execution of the contract shortly. And we're
looking at early 2006 to start the planning. That is when the, the route selection
process is going to start.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What selection process?
MR. CAJIGAL: The route selection process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Route selection. You know, you bring up
something that's very confusing to me, because you've mentioned this in several
of the planning projects that you're in negotiations. Who are you in negotiations
with, and what do you negotiate?
MR. CAJIGAL: The negotiation is basically between the State and the consultant that
we hired. Mostly, when I say negotiation it's more like fee negotiations and what
is included in their fees. What we want them to do, and then they would come in
with a proposal, and then from there we, we, it's going to bounce back a couple of
times to, to make sure that what we want is what we paid for, or what they do,
they're going to do what we want them to do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But don't you layout, excuse me, don't you layout
what you want them to do when you go out to bid, or, or do you do that?
MR. CAJIGAL: We do general, general lay .. " general lay outs. And then from there
they would go out and look at the, what is involved with those requirements. In
other words, if, if, for say, like say for route selections. What does it, they're
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going to do a route selection. They're going to go to the community three or four
times, and they're going to make all these meetings from, like, say Upcountry to
Kahului.
So, they, they're going to have to present all those proposals to us, and then we
look at it, and say, okay, this looks like a workable idea. And then they're going
to get, then the fee proposal comes about, and then, of course we got to look at all
the components of the whole, of the whole process. And it's, it's, it's very
tedious work.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, when you go out to bid you have a general idea
of the design parameters that you want them to ...
MR. CAJIGAL: Right now, we're still in planning. It's not even in design yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You have planning parameters-MR. CAJIGAL: Planning, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that you want them to follow.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and then, and then when they corne back to
you with, I don't know, the negotiations does it ever end up being different than
what you actually intended originally?
MR. CAJIGAL: Most of the times, because they, sometimes their fees are just so high
that we cannot even, then we got to look, start looking at budgets. Then we start,
maybe, cutting back some, some, some, some work, or cutting back some scopes,
or let's go negotiate further, or why don't you, then that, that's when the real
negotiation comes into play.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Maybe I can make this more specific. On the
Honoapiilani Highway realignment widening apparently you're examining
alternative realignment corridors and winding alternatives, and negotiations are in
progress. Can you be specific about what is being negotiating, negotiated and
where, where exactly on Honoapiilani Highway is this?
MR. CAJIGAL: This route is between Maalaea and Puamana. And when I say
negotiation it's basically the same negotiation process that we were just talking
about earlier that we do have a consultant, and we, we gave them the, the, just
general, the planning parameters that we want them to do. And then from there
they'll, they, they look at how they're going to attack the project with all their fee
proposals, and we review that. And that's what we review.

PW10103105

Page 26

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll yield to anybody
else. I do have a few more questions for Mr. Cajigal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department?
I, I do have one. What Member Mateo brought up in regards to the Paia bypass. I
know Member Anderson noted that there were three plans. I, I think if you go
back, like, 15, 20 years ago there was a plan that was done by the, I guess, State
of Hawaii in regards to the first time the by ... , Paia bypass came about. Is, is that
plan, the original plan that is being proposed, the original plan that was done 15,
20 years ago, the planned proposal for the Paia bypass?
MR. CAJIGAL: Right now, we, that's going to have to be included as part of the, of the
route selection process that we're going to do. If, if there was a route that was
selected 20, 30 years ago, yeah, certainly we, we can look at that as one of the, the
route that we need to, to study along with the other routes that, that, that have
come up since then.
I know the Community Plan has a, has a, what do you call corridor, I think,
something like aI, 000 foot corridor or something like that. There's one in there
that I, I saw in the Community Plan. That certainly will be, will be looked at too.
Those are all part of the, the alignment that we're going to have to look at when
we do the EIS for this project.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield to Member Molina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Member Molina. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think he had a question. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Actually, Mr. Chairman, I was just
going to ask for a point of personal privilege. If we could take, take a, a morning
break before we proceed with further questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll take Member Anderson's question and then we'll take a
break.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I appreciate that. I, I'm going to have
to leave at the break for a doctor's appointment, and I did want to ask a couple of
questions on South Maui issues. And one of them is, Mr. Cajigal, you've got the
Phase 1A of Mokulele scheduled to go out to bid in December of this year. And
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this, of course, is the section of Mokulele that will intersect with North Kihei
Road and Piilani Highway.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And this is a $24 million project. So, I'm assuming
if you're going out to bid you've already got the design done.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes, pretty much. We're about 95 percent, in fact, 100, actually that
final plans have gone out for final review already. It'll come back, and we'll just,
what we need to do is just clean it up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because this is the entry way to South Maui this
section is unlike the rest of the sections which, you know, are just the highway.
Have you interfaced with the community association at all in the design of this
section?
MR. CAJIGAL: We interfaced with them back when we started the design of this
project, which, which was, which was about, I would say about three years, at
least three years ago, three somewhat years ago. When we sat down with them to
look at the basis of design, this is how we're going to design this highway.
This is how we're going to go, do all the other geometric improvements and what
not. And then from there, because of funding constraints we started phasing it.
So, basically we're still following whatever agreements or discussions we've had
with the, with the association at that time it was developed, way back at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
years ago?

So, you're saying you met with the KCA three

MR. CAJIGAL: I would think at least three years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, because, yeah, at least three years ago I
remember discussions, many people contacted Councilmember Nishiki's office in
regards to this, because they wanted this entry way into South Maui to be
designed as an entry into South Maui not just another highway intersection. And,
and they requested under grounding of utilities and possibly a roundabout.
Now, a roundabout probably wouldn't be a good idea at this intersection, because
there's so many lanes intersecting here, but why, why could, why could you not
consider under grounding the utilities in that area in order to beautify the entry
way into South Maui?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Cajigal.
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MR. CAJIGAL: Let me, we did talk to them. In fact, when you're talking about
beauty ... , beautifying, didn't the Kihei community, my understanding back at
that time is that they didn't want the, the landscaping theme that we, we have for
the entire route of Mokulele Highway and that's originally why they said they
were going to do it their own, they were going to do their own landscaping
plantings as you approach Piilani and Mokulele intersection.
And as far as the, the under grounding, we are under grounding some of it, but not
all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What, what will you be under grounding?
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, we're under grounding some sections between the, I believe right
at the, at the existing utility pole, utility lines through, at the intersection of North
Kihei Road and Mokulele, I think that will be underground. I think that. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would it be possible to get a copy of the design for
that intersection or entryway?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I would appreciate that. And then one more, two
more really quick questions, Mr. Chair. You have a special maintenance project
for, for next year, which is resurfacing Piilani from Kilohana to Wailea Iki. Why?
MR. CAJIGAL: It's, it's ready to be resurfaced.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I drive it a lot. It seems fine to me.
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, if you don't, if you're not going to do anything with it right now
you're going to start, it's going to start cracking pretty soon.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What's the cost of that? Estimate.
MR. CAJIGAL: I think that, that section is about $400,000 or so, three to $400,000. It's
a short segment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, well, you know, that is a, a short segment,
but it's going to be a very, I would say a very problematic section of the highway
in the not too distant future, because there's lots of development going on south of
Kilohana. And as you know, you folks restriped Piilani to four lanes up to
Kilohana, but beyond Kilohana to Wailea Iki it's two lanes, and I'm, I'm certain
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that the reason the restriping wasn't done any further is because there's blue rock
right up to the edge of the roadway on either side once you leave Kilohana going
towards Wailea.
So, that area is going to be a bottleneck. It already is a bottleneck during
commuter time, and, and I experience that when I leave Maui Meadows. The
second, second entry way to Maui Meadows is just a stop sign. And so, there's
often times when you wait a long time to get onto the highway if there's a stream
of cars coming from the Makena and Wailea resort areas.
So, I'm just wondering rather than resurfacing is there any plans that, that you
folks have to widen that section of the highway?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Cajigal.
MR. CAJIGAL: I don't have, we don't have the immediate plans to widen that section of
the highway right now. That, that resurfacing is a special maintenance. It's a
preventative maintenance for us to do it. If we don't do it, you're going to have
pot holes. That's what that project is for. Restripe, resurface it, restripe it, and ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand that. Maintenance is good.
MR. CAJIGAL: So, but to answer your question, Councilmember Anderson on this, and
we don't have no immediate plans to, to, to do it at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You have no plans at all?
MR. CAJIGAL: No, not, not, we don't have any immediate plans. It is in our long range
plan to, to widen it though eventually, but not within the next short, short range
like this.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, and short range being the next six years.
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, we, we're looking at the short range, like I'm talking about, if you
look at within the next six years or so it's not in our current six year plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, that area ofPiilani will not be widened beyond,
until at least ten years from now possibly?
MR. CAJIGAL: Not within the next six years. That's all I'm saying. I mean if we ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but six years-MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and then you're saying, you know, it takes several
years for planning. So, we're looking at, we're looking at a long time, and that's
going to create a bottleneck for the South Maui region.
The other thing I wanted to bring up, Mr. Chair, just briefly is in the
Kihei-Upcountry Highway you say that your, your execution of the contract is in
progress. Does that mean that, and that you're going to complete the design in
2008. Does that mean that, if you are currently executing a contract does that
mean that the, the alignment for that roadway is, is never going to be changed?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Cajigal.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words, the, the alignment right now as it
stands is that where it's going ...
MR. CAJIGAL: The alignment is fixed.
COUNCIL MEMBER ANDERSON: It's fixed.
MR. CAJIGAL: We do the record of decision from the EIS that was prepared a couple
years back. The contract that I'm referring to there, Councilmember Anderson, is
our contract with our design consultant to actually start designing the project.
We're looking at phasing this project into two.
So, when I say it's complete in 2018,2008, I'm looking at completing the entire
route in 2008 in terms of design with construction to follow. The planning stage
for that project has been completed. The route selection has been completed. So,
we are now in the, in the design stage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know,just for my edification, and I'm sure for
many people who are not happy with this location, can you tell us, you know,
because this, this is not the location that many people both Upcountry and in
Kihei wanted. Can you tell us why this was the location that was chosen?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Cajigal.
MR. CAJIGAL: I can't tell you offhand why, because there's a, there's a lot of reason
that was, I can provide a copy to you in terms of the record of decision for that
route, for that Kihei-Upcountry route, but it goes, it all goes back to the purpose
and need of, of this highway, and based on the purpose and need that was
identified, that routes, those termini was selected because of, to satisfy those
needs, those purpose and needs.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'd like to know what those purpose and
needs are. So, if you could give me a copy of that I'd really appreciate it.
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MR. CAJIGAL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I'm, I know I'm asking you questions
that may not be in your memory bank today, because this did happen quite some
time ago, but was there any consideration for evacuation plan, for an evacuation
plan in South Maui?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes, there was. There was a detailed discussion in the EIS for that
matter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There was.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I would think that this would be a, a major
consideration for this.
MR. CAJIGAL: It was a major, one of the major consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, it has been determined that it would be, by
the time this road is built ifthere's need to evacuate South Maui that the highway,
and, again, this is my concern about Piilani from Kilohana to its terminus being
two lanes, that people south of Kilohana are going to be in a, a very difficult
bottleneck trying to evacuate South Maui to get all the way to, it isn't even the
High Tech Park; is it? It's, help me out where the terminus is.
MR. CAJIGAL: Kaonoulu. Kaonoulu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Kaonoulu. Yeah, see-MR. CAJIGAL: Right below, behind Maui Lu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that's, you know, that's very, very south, I mean
north. That's a long ways to go to get mauka.
MR. CAJIGAL: As I recall, like I said earlier, there was a discussion and those were
included in the, in the analysis, but it all, it all goes back to the purpose and need
of, of that, of the highway. So, I can give you all this information, and you can
look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you. I appreciate that. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Thank you, Mr. Cajigal.
Members, if there is no more question 1'd like to close out PW-1. At this tine the
Chair would recommend that we defer this item, if there's no objection?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, very much.

ACTION:

DEFER

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, it's 10:40. We'll take a ten-minute break, and we'll
return here at ten to eleven. Recess.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:40 a.m.
10:54 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works Committee Meeting is reconvened. That
was a good break. Members, at this time, next on the agenda is Public Works 36,
steel plates used during road construction. This is .. , (End of Tape, Side
2A) . .. 05-269, from the Council Chair, transmitting a letter from Warren
Woodward, President, Maui Chapter Street Bikes United, relating to steel plates
used during road construction and recommending the use of appropriate signage.
At this time, the Chair would like to call for public testimony on this agenda item.
People that are testifying you do have three minutes to testify, one minute to
conclude. And if you need an additional three minutes, and if there's no testifier
coming up to testify, the Chair will give you another three minutes. So, at this
time I'd like to call on Mr. Woodward. Mr. Woodward .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

MR. WOODWARD: Mr. Chair, Committee Members, my name is Warren Woodward.
I'm President of the Maui Chapter Street Bikers United. Thank you very much
for considering this letter. I have very little to add to it except that, just to
reiterate that I think it would be a good idea to have the steel plate ahead signs
whenever a steel plate is used on Maui. And that would eliminate any sort of
judgment calls as to, you know, should we have a one, should we have a sign
here, or should we not have a sing here.
Ifit's, ifit's the policy ofthe Public Works Department to, to have a sign up then,
then it's a done deal, and, and the situation will be more safe for the motorcycling
pUblic. Thanks.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Woodward. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much.
MR. WOODWARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, the testifier also provided us with written comments
in regards to his testimony. Ifthere's no objections the Chair would like to accept
the written testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, seeing no other person
corning up for public testimony, the Chair would like to close public testimony on
this agenda item if there's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

PW-36

STEEL PLATES USED DURING ROAD CONSTRUCTION
(C.c. No. 05-269)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: This morning we have with us, again, from the Public Works
Department, Deputy Mike Miyamoto as well as Mr. Krueger. Also joining us this
morning are Captain Milton Matsuoka as well as Lieutenant Mollie Klingman.
Good morning. Department.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, if I could I would like my engineer here to, to describe
our current practices regarding steel plates and advance warning signs.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Krueger.
MR. KRUEGER: Our current practices are what we follow in the MUTCD, which is our
standard manual, but the, regarding the steel plates I've seen signs steel plates
ahead, and I've seen where they haven't had it. And after a long discussion with
our, in our Division last week regarding steel plates sign ahead, we agree with the
submittal that it should be at every construction site that has steel plates, and we
will start installing it on our, on our projects.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Krueger.
Department? Member Mateo.

Members, any questions for the
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Krueger, thank you very
much. So, the, the, the putting up of the, the signs would be on all County
projects? So, only on County road areas, but. ..
MR. KRUEGER: Well, see we control our-COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: Yeah.
MR. KRUEGER: --we can control our projects.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. So, so ...
MR. KRUEGER: So, what we'll do is we'll, we'll notify DSA that that's what we're
recommending is to place those signs on, on all the projects that require permit
that they inspect that would be within our road right-of-ways.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank: you. So, Mr. Chair, we don't know
whether Mr. Woodward actually also wrote a letter of concern to the State as well,
because there is usage on both County and State roads. And in order for the same
safety issues to be addressed on the safety part of, on the State part of, of the, the
bikers' travels I think: we've got to be consistent as well. And I think: for just the
County to put it up just kind of deals with one side of the, the problem and not
really being addressed, because, yeah, Mr. Krueger, are you able to ...
MR. KRUEGER: Yeah, I was just talking to Freddie this morning about this, and he, he
said they, they normally do. He, he said if it's not it's a, well, they normally do,
and they would still place a head sign on, on there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank: you, so, Mr. Chair, if it's possible to send
Mr., Mr. Cajigal a letter asking him for the consideration of the State to also post
similar signs on all State projects that would be traversed by the bikers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll just do that. Just a comment, Members, if
there are no objections, I'd to call on Mr. Woodward in regards to steel plates.
Have you every contacted the Department of Highways, State of Hawaii in
regards to the safety issue that you presented the County?
MR. WOODWARD: Yes, sir...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Can you get to the mic please and identify yourself?
MR. WOODWARD: Yeah, Warren Woodward, Maui Chapter President, Street Bikers
United. To answer your question I did contact someone with the State
Department of Transportation, or whatever they're called, and unfortunately I
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can't remember the guy's name, but he, he, he, he, he told me that it was their
policy to put steel plate head signs on, on the State roads.
But on the other hand, I, I've been in communication with some of our officers
over on Maui, and they said, well, I mean over on Oahu, and they said, well, I
don't know if they're really following through on that on the State roads over
here, because he, he said that he wasn't seeing the signs all the time. And for my
own self I thought well I would just start this project at the, at the County level
and, and see how it's received before making a State issue about it, but anything
you could do to sort of, you know, prod the State or help the State to remember to
do this that would be a great thing. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll send a letter as suggested by Member Mateo
to the Department of Highways in regards to this safety issue. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Krueger, you mentioned
that the County will now, I guess, make it a policy now to ensure that steel plate
sign ahead signs are put up. How are you folks going to, I guess, get this out to
all the contractors? Will this be part of the permit process, or included as
language, I guess, that, that way it notifies contractors or whomever of that?
MR. KRUEGER: Yeah, on our new projects we'll, we'll install, we'll have that item in
our specifications. And all the ongoing projects we'll notify our inspectors on the
current projects to notify our contractors what we, what they're required to do.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and about, do you know, can you give us a guesstimate
as to how soon you will start this practice?
MR. KRUEGER: Immediately.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Immediately. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department?
None. At this time, I'd like to have Captain Matsuoka just make a statement in
regards to steel plates if you could.
MR. MATSUOKA: Hi, good morning. My name is Milton Matsuoka. I'm a Captain
with the Maui Police Department and Commander of the Wailuku District. As far
as, I can say I'm not a bike rider myself, but we have officers in the Maui Police
Department that are. And definitely I can see that there is a concern as far as that
goes, going from asphalt to the steel plate. You know, especially if you're
looking at it being a little wet or something like that.
So, I can definitely see a safety concern there. And I would agree that that's
probably part of the process, you know, once, once it goes out for contract or
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something that it be part of the proposal that the contractor, contractor be, well
part of the contractors thing to have a sign out there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Captain Matsuoka? If
not, thank you very much. Members, any more questions in regards to this
agenda item either for Public Works? If not, the Chair would like to recommend
that we file Public Works Item 36.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Molina, second by Member
Mateo. All in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion carried. Thank you very much.

VOTE:

ACTION:

PW-34

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
None.
FILING of communication.

FLOOD DAMAGE AT ISLAND SANDS AND MAALAEA
BANYAN CONDOMINIUMS (C.c. No. 05-254)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the last item on our agenda this morning is
Public Works Item 34. This is in regards to flood damage at Island Sands and
Maalaea Banyan Condominiums. This is a result of County Communication No.
05-254 from Councilmember Anderson transmitting a communication from L.
Lanihuli Freidenburg, Island Sands Condominium Board Member relating to the
flood damages.
At this time, the Chair would like to call for public testimony on Public, on
Agenda Item PW-34. We do have one person that has signed up for testimony,
and he is Mr. Robert Riebling. Again, for the testifier you have three minutes,
one minute to conclude. If there's no other person here signed up for public
testimony we'll give you an additional three minutes after the first three minutes.
So, Mr. Riebling.
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... BEING PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

MR. RIEBLING: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. I am Rob
Riebling, President of the Maalaea Community Association. The letter in
question was not sent in by us, but by one of our members who, unfortunately,
could not be here this morning, but I'm familiar with the issue, and I'd just like to
make a few comments on the situation that it refers to.
In the residential community of Maalaea there's basically only one street. That's
Hauoli Street, and it's a dead end. So, when flooding occurs half of our
community is cut off. People can't get to or from work. Emergency vehicles
can't get to the other, other end of the street, and in the incident in question here
flooding caused severe damage to ground water, ground level apartment units.
So, for all of these reasons flooding is always a big concern for our community.
Now, we've looked into this in the past with the State Highways, and the Public
Works and A&B, and so forth. There are four major factors that lead to the
periodic flooding of Hauoli Street.
The first is that some years ago when the State Highways people paved a portion
of the natural water course that flows to the adjacent cane field, it reduced the
natural percolation of water into the soil thereby increasing the amount of water
that reaches the culvert that passes under the street. We take note of the fact that
this was done despite warnings to the contrary by our Association and other
responders to the environmental assessment statement at the time.
The second factor is the infrequent and random cleanout of the water course
within their cane field by HC&S. Considerable trash and debris accumulates
there when irresponsible citizens throw old appliances and rubber tires, and so
forth in the cane field. When it rains that washes down, and it accumulates at the
culvert where it catches silt, green waste, and reduces the flow area causing the
stream to overflow. Common, or characteristically there are a lot of bridges and
culverts everywhere.
The third factor, the infrequent and random cleanout of the culvert and the
downstream drainage channel itself by Public Works whose responsibility it is.
But, again, that's a problem generic throughout the County and throughout the
State. There aren't enough people to go around cleaning out every culvert and
every bridge all the time.
Finally, though, one factor is the inadequate flow area of the culvert itself. We
have six large boxed culverts passing under Honoa... , Honoapiilani Highway
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flowing into this cane field, but only one four foot diameter culvert providing
outlet to Maalaea Bay.
Now, of these four factors, the way we see it there's only two of them that Public
Works here in the County can do anything about. In the near term, we would like
to see the culvert and the downstream channel maintained clear and free of debris
on a priority basis, because this is one little choke point that's been identified as a
likely contributor to local flooding.
In the longer term, we would like the Department to consider enlarging the flow
area of the culvert either by adding a second four foot pipe or, in placement of a
boxed culvert, or maybe even a bridge.
Now, as we all saw earlier in the slide presentation the Department has currently
funded to construct the sidewalk on Hauoli Street. Now, this sidewalk will most
likely cross the ditch by means of a foot bridge next to but separate from the
highway, or the roadway. And it's the position of the Community Association
that any culvert improvements that have been requested here be considered and
funded separately from the sidewalk project, so as not to delay it further, because
no kidding, we've been waiting 31 years for the sidewalk. In fact, two of my
predecessors as presidents of the association have actually died waiting for the
sidewalk, and I'd rather not join them in that category.
Now, the, okay. I'll conclude. The Director of Public Works and Environmental
Management has informed the Community Association that a contract has now
been led for the design of the sidewalk, and we will be given visibility into that
design project, progress and the opportunity to make some inputs. We intend to
bring the matter of the culvert enlargement forward to the Department at that time
when we meet with them.
And in conclusion, now as we enter another rainy season, we hope that the timely
cleanout of the culvert by a County maintenance crew will happen, and we'll
greatly appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Riebling. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Riebling
MR. RIEBLING: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I was wondering if you would help, help me with some
background information. This is in regards to that faxed letter that was sent to us
by L. Lanihuli Freidenburg, I believe that's a Board member. And near the end of
the cover letter it states that there was absolutely no response from the County
Council to the letter, which was the March 7, 2004 letter. Then I looked, I guess
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there's some attachments to that letter, I guess addresses and people that
apparently this letter was sent to. This letter was sent to HC&S, Planning
Department, Maalaea Banyans, Transportation Department, Public Works, and
then Councilmember Wayne Nishiki.
So, I wondering if you could, if you had any background information on why this
person, I don't know if it's a male or female, Freidenburg made that statement
that there was absolutely no response from the County Council to the letter. Do
you know, do you have some information?
MR. RIEBLING: Okay. I can talk to that a little bit. I'm not here to speak for that
person who independently sent in the complaint. I only had a chance to see it a
little while ago when Michelle showed me a, a copy of it. Apparently that letter
dates back quite a while, actually to 2004.
Subsequent to that our Community Association formed a little task force, and we
had several meetings on this flooding problem. Public Works was represented.
Some of those people are in the room right now. State Highways was there, A&B
and HC&S were there, and we had a series of meetings in which we discussed this
problem.
And so, I guess I have to take issue with that, because Public Works has been
involved in it. They're aware, and we've all been working on it together. So, I'd
have to disagree with that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you Member, Molina. Any more questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much, Mr. Riebling.
MR. RIEBLING: Thank you .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, Scott is passing out some photos that he recently
took of the area, and in regards to the culvert that's crossing Hauoli Street in
Maalaea. So, at this time 1'd like to have you folks ask questions, if you guys
have any questions of the, the Public Works Department.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Chairman, you know what I'll yield to Member
Hokama. He had a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do we currently have a claim or settlement request
regarding this case, this issue?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
information.

Public Works or Corporation Counsel if you have that

MS. YOUNG: We did a review in our office and, and to date, to my knowledge, there is
no claim on this particular property regarding this particular issue with respect to
these two condominiums.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Can we hear what the Department has as
far as dealing with the status of the culvert and ditch please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Department if you have any comments in regards to the
course of action in regards to this complaint that we received.
MR. MIYAMOTO: I'll yield to my engineer who has the better history on the project.
MR. KRUEGER: I'm Joe Krueger. This has always, this has been an ongoing problem
for quite a while. If you look at the picture you'll notice that that drainage way is
lined with concrete now. At one time it wasn't, and it was dirt, and maintaining
the dirt drainage way was very difficult.
So, I believe our, our Highways Division had the drainage way lined so that it
would be easier to maintain. Of course, that was quite a while ago, and now I can
see that it needs to be cleaned out again. The culvert does appear to be too small
for the drainage way, which should be reevaluated.
However, the, the flooding they had earlier this year was due to a, a river
overflowing, that the water went over the banks and went into this drainage basin.
You know the river that runs between North Kihei Road and Kuihelani?
Upstream from the highway evidently was, it was getting full of the, the rocks,
you know, the rocks as they come down from way up stream, and it was just
filling the, the stream up.
And, and the stream got so full of these rocks that the water overflowed the banks,
and it went alongside the, the river, outside the river, and down to the highway,
and then across the highway, Honoapiilani Highway, went through the cane
fields, and came out of this outlet. Of course, this outlet wasn't big enough to
carry the water, and it overflowed into the two condominiums adjacent to it.
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Since then the, someone has cleaned it out. The, the stream doesn't overflow, but
the 48 inch culvert does appear to be undersized.
COUNClLMEMBER HOKAMA:
regarding this?

So, what would be the next Departmental action

MR. KRUEGER: We would need to analyze it and, and come up with an appropriate
size, and come back to Council for ClP funding to replace this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Those impacts you shared with us regarding the river
that would need cooperation from State agencies?
MR. KRUEGER: The river itself will be maintained by the owner. Whoever the owner
is will have to maintain that stream, clean it out, and, or whatever needs to be
done, but our, our, our concern is the culvert and the drainage way going
downstream. The drainage way from Hauoli Street to the ocean needs to be
repaired, cleaned out and repaired.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This would be a maintenance request-MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --more than likely-MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --operational.
MR. KRUEGER: It may be too big of a job to repair that then we may have to go to ClP.
The reason they did put in the concrete line is because when, when they had the
dirt, it would, it would have been like a gulch, and they'd have to, like, walk in
with picks and shovels and clean it all out. So, that's the reason, the primary
reason they did line it with concrete.
COUNClLMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Krueger, you have records of the
Department's main ... , maintenance of, of these facilities? You could tell this
committee that the last County maintenance was done on this month, this day of
this year?
MR. KRUEGER: I couldn't say.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You couldn't say.
MR. KRUEGER: But see that's our Highway's Division that does this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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MR. KRUEGER: But when you concrete line a drainage way like this you don't expect
to clean it very often, because it normally cleans itself out.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Mr. Deputy Director, are you, are you aware
of your Department having some type of periodic inspection review just to make
an assessment whether or not additional maintenance requirements would be
appropriate?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, if I may?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIY AMOTO: Yes, they do have a periodic inspection, but what that is at this point
I'm really not familiar with that. I'd have to check with our Highways Division
to, to confirm what exactly that schedule is, but I know given the recent storms
that we were expecting that we made it a firm commitment to let them know that,
hey, check all the drainage ways, because if we're expecting heavy rains we want
to make sure that everything is clear. And we had the crews' standby just in case
of the heavy rains and everything.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And when appropriate I would hope we could get a
response to this Committee, Mr. Chairman. I think the Deputy Director is very
cognizant of the season of the year--

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and, you know, we put hundreds of thousands of
dollars to our work line programs to assist in this type of areas, and I would hope
that we can minimize this type of occurrence, because I think there's drainage
flooding concerns throughout the whole County not just Maui. We deal with it on
Lanai. I'm sure Mr. Mateo deals with it on Molokai. And I guess going into
Budget we, we need to know how good is our, our maintenance and inspection
program, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for that information. Part of the intentions of our
meeting this morning not only on this project here, but also the previous, not
previous, subject, the first subject that we had is, is to make sure that whatever
projects that we budget for, you know, we keep close tabs as far as those projects
are being done. You know, as all of us know when come budget time, you know,
it's easier for us to make decisions once we get some updates and
recommendations from the Department.
So, thank you for that information, and we'll send a letter to the Department in
regards to that. I have a question here. This is in regards to the sidewalk
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construction for Hauoli Street. And I understand that once the design is
completed that you'll be meeting with the Association, again, and what was noted
by the testifier the concern of that culvert will also be brought up at that time.
So, what, what's the Department's plans in regards to that, you know, as you see
today, and, and what the testifier had recommended earlier? During the design
stage do we install a culvert and come back to the County for more monies, or do
we wait?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, right now I, that project is currently in the data collection.
They're working on the survey maps for that area. Given the, this item here on
the agenda we may want to reevaluate the limits of their surveying to possibly
look at any expansion of the culverts in this area, but as far as regarding, as the
testifier had indicated, they did not want the sidewalk held up because of the, the
culverts. So, we can look into how we can work the two so that one doesn't delay
the other.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The other question that I had, the photos that were,
I guess, circulated amongst the Members as well as yourselves, on that top right,
you know, it seems like there's a safety issue, in fact, on the opposite side of the
road probably also. There's no guardrails and, and when we do the design not
only for the sidewalk as, as well as the, and the proposed enlargement of the, the
drainage area that we include guardrails to provide some public safety in regards
to Hauoli Street pedestrians.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, yes, we can, we can look into safety measures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more, Member Molina followed by
Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Yes, question for Mr. Krueger. You
mentioned earlier I guess the river is supposed to be maintained by the landowner.
For the record, who's the landowner in this case that's supposed to maintain the
river, if you have that information?
MR. KRUEGER: No, I don't know who the landowner is.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I guess what I'm trying to lead up to is because, I
guess, when you have the heavy rains I would guess the river, if it's not
maintained, would be a cause of all of this debris coming in too. I, I presume
they've been involved in the discussions as to maybe cost share if any
improvements need to be made, which we're, I guess, possibly looking at. Is that
correct to your knowledge?
MR. KRUEGER: Well, they actually had it, had that portion of the stream cleaned out.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. KRUEGER: I don't know if they did it themselves, but they made arrangements to
have it cleaned out.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and in the letter from that, I guess the March 7th, 2004
letter, the last paragraph on the first page the person that wrote the letter indicated
that there were two previous flooding incidents at Island Sands. One about 15
years ago, and another one about ten years ago ... (End of Tape, Side 2B) . .. I
know you've been with the Department for so time, have, have you, do you have
any recollection of, if, if the, there was any type of action taken after those first
two flooding incidents before the February 2004 flooding incident took place?
MR. MIYAMOTO: No, I don't.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Chair, I guess maybe if we can, via
the Committee, could request some historical, historical background information
on these, I guess what occurred after those two flooding incidents just for the
Committee's information if that's possible, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we'll write a letter to the Department for that information.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you, and, and just for, just for the sake
of clarification based on the Director's comments a few minutes ago and the
engineer's reference that the, the culverts, in fact, are undersized. Are we, are we
assuming at this point that the Department is going to be pursuing this particular
item and looking at increasing the size of the culverts?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, if the, if the culvert needs to be increased in size we will request
funding for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And can you tell me what kind of timetable the
Department would be looking at?
MR. KRUEGER: Well, we can do that before the budget submittal this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For both your plan and design for, for this particular
project?
MR. KRUEGER: We can estimate how much funds we would need to replace the
culvert for this coming budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is this, is this particular project, was it, was it even in
the radar-MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --for the Department?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, we've been talking to the Maalaea Community Association, and
the DOT, and A&B about the drainage in the area.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And where about it was it on the Department's priority
consideration? Whereabouts was this project?
MR. KRUEGER: That just started this year, that process, meeting with these people to
determine the extent of the drainage.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Krueger, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Members, any more questions for
the Department? Seeing none, thank you very much. At this time, the Chair
would recommend that Public Works Item No. 34 be filed.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So moved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo. Any discussion? All in favor say
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, motion carried.

VOTE:

ACTION:

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontanilla.
NOES:
None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
None.
FILING of communication.

AYES:
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, there's no other items on the agenda this morning.
Is there any announcements? If not, thank you very much. Meeting adjourned.

11:27 a.m.
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